
Village of Holmen 
Planning Commission Minutes 

February 25, 2020 
 

Village President Barlow called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:30PM on 
Tuesday, February 25, 2020.  Present were commission members Barlow, Stanek, Rugroden, 
Anderson, Appold, Kertis, and Grokowsky; along with advisory members Administrator Heinig 
and Engineer Dahl.  Also in attendance: Gale Ross, Pat Doerre, Joe Deml, Jane Deml, Greg 
Hackner, Carol Hackner, Sue Polodna, David Trussoni, Randall Moseng, Jim Christenson, Rick 
Beyer, and Robert Gill. 
 
Public Hearings:  

Change of Zoning Petition from RJ 35 LLC from (R‐1) Single Family Residential District to (R‐
6) Zero Lot Line (Single Family Twindo) Residential District on approximately 3 acres of 
property immediately West of Briggs Road and immediately South of Sween Drive 
 
Motion by Appold, seconded by Stanek to open the public hearing for the above 
referenced item.  Carried 7‐0:  
Rick Beyer stated that he was one of the property owners and felt that this was a good use 
of the property. 
Joe Deml asked if the rezone would allow for rental properties, and asked if a restriction on 
rentals be placed on the area. 
Jim Christensen stated that he was one of the property owners and felt that the proposed 
use was a good transition from the single family residences to the high school. 
Greg Ackner questioned how the same property was once proposed to be developed in the 
Town of Holland with 4 units, but now it’s being proposed in the Village with 8 units.  He 
also stated that he doesn’t like the added traffic to the area with its proximity to the high 
school. 
Motion by Anderson, seconded by Rugroden to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 7‐
0. 

 
Approval of the November 26, 2019 Minutes: 
 

Motion by Rugroden, seconded by Anderson to approve the minutes of the January 28, 
2020 Meeting. Carried 7‐0. 

 
Public comment: 

None 
 
Agenda Items: 

Possible Action and Recommendation on RJ 35 LLC Petition for Change of Zoning from (R‐
1) Single Family Residential District to (R‐6) Zero Lot Line (Single Family Twindo) 



Residential District on approximately 3 acres of property immediately West of Briggs Road 
and immediately South of Sween Drive.   

Administrator Heinig stated what is being proposed is a zero lot line twindo development.  
He explained that twindos are still considered low density buildings so the proposal is 
compliant with the Village comprehensive plan.  He stated that there are no restrictions in 
place to prohibit rentals within the Village ordinances, but it was his understanding that the 
intent is to offer owner occupied structures.  He stated that staff has no concerns and 
recommended its approval.   
 
Member Barlow asked about the parcel’s history.  Administrator Heinig said the parcel was 
annexed by then owner Scott Ryan about 8 years ago.  A proposal for higher density 
developments was not supported, and the parcel remained zoned single family.  He added 
that the parcel has restricted access to Briggs Road.  If it were to remain in single family 
zoning the infrastructure costs involved to develop 3 lots does not make economic sense.   
 
Member Grokowsky asked if there was other access to the area.  Administrator Heinig 
stated that the only access would be from Sween Drive and Sween’s only access is from 
Briggs Road. 

Motion by Stanek, seconded by Appold to recommend approval of the change of zoning 
petition from (R‐1) Single Family Residential District to (R‐6) Zero Lot Line (Single Family 
Twindo) Residential District on approximately 3 acres of property immediately West of 
Briggs Road and immediately South of Sween Drive. Carried 7‐0. 
 

Possible Action and Recommendation on RJ 35 LLC Preliminary Plat for Sweens Addition. 

 
Administrator Heinig outlined the rezoning petition by RJ 35 LLC.  He explained the only 
access to the area from McHugh Road is from Briggs Road and then to Sween Drive.  As part 
of Holmen’s comprehensive plan Briggs Road is planned to extend to the north and 
eventually connect to Old NA.  A network of other streets will be completed when the area 
to the north is developed.  He explained that the parcel cannot be developed or platted 
other ways with access to Briggs Road being restricted.  He recommended the approval of 
the preliminary plat. 
Member Barlow asked if staff had any hydraulic concerns with this development.  Engineer 
Dahl stated that the engineering and hydraulic information had yet to be submitted.  
However, before this would be developed that information would be reviewed to verify that 
the post development runoff is less than the predeveloped state. 
 
Member Stanek stated a supplemental consideration of the hydraulics was warranted and 
should be an added contingency to the acceptance.  Administrator Heinig stated that the 
developer would be required to bring full engineering plans for review and approval of staff, 
other committees, and the Village Board as part of the development approval process. 



Motion by Anderson, seconded by Appold to recommend approval of the preliminary plat 
for Sweens Addition to the Village Board contingent upon staff reviews of the plans, 
engineering details, and completed hydraulic analysis. Carried 7‐0. 
 

Possible Action and Recommendation on Termination and Release of Reservation for 
Possible Future Street Purposes North of Hidden Valley Road 
 
Administrator Heinig explained the location of the parcel, roadways and boundaries in the 
area.  He stated the land on these parcels was reserved with a CSM for future street right of 
way.  He stated that there is no need for a future street on these parcels.  He stated that the 
owners of the parcels had drafted the legal paperwork to release the easement and with 
the approval of the commission the easement on their parcel would go away. 
Member Grokowsky asked if the easement continued to the north of the parcel outlined in 
red.  Administrator Heinig stated that it did continue to the north and that the easement 
would be released on those properties would also be released if the owners prepared the 
legal paperwork. 

Motion by Grokowsky, seconded by Kertis to recommend approval of the termination and 
release of reservation for possible future street purposes north of Hidden Valley Road. 
Carried 7‐0. 

Possible Action on Site Plan & Architectural Review (SPAR) Petition for Amendment to 
Approved SPAR of Primus Dental Colors and Materials off McHugh Road and Holmen 
Drive. 

Administrator Heinig explained that this is an amendment to an approved site plan and 
architectural review plan.  He stated that the prior review was completely SPAR plan 
compliant with the exception of the signage which had been corrected.  He explained the 
first change is the color with cranberry base, gray walls, and a tan EIFS.  The second change 
is the change in building materials.  He explained that the use of the split face block had 
reduced the percentage of brick on the building.  The use of these blocks is not consistent 
with previous newly built structures being required to meet the brick requirement.  He 
offered the Verve Credit Union, Shops on Hale, Festival Foods, O’reilly Auto Parts, 814 Main 
Street, and Holmen Cheese as examples.  He stated he can’t support the approval and 
recommended denial. 

Member Stanek stated he was ok with the color changes, but would like to stay consistent 
with the brick ratio requirement. 

Member Rugroden asked to see the material samples, and asked if the split face was 
considered differently when use in different sizes.  Administrator Heinig stated that the use 
of split face is commonly used as an accent, but as a primary façade it was not considered to 
be masonry regardless of the size of the individual units. 

Member Anderson asked what the color requirements were.  Administrator Heinig stated 
that the colors need to be earth tones and the submitted colors meet the requirements. 



Building owner Randall Moseng stated that architect kept the split‐face CMU unit height to 
a minimum and the EIFS height was shrunk to keep the center portion of the building 
compliant to the 75% masonry requirement.  Administrator Heinig explained his method of 
calculating the percentage, and stated he was approximately 63% ‐ 65%. 

Motion by Stanek, seconded by Anderson to deny the Site Plan & Architectural Review 
(SPAR) petition for amendment to approved SPAR of Primus Dental colors and materials off 
McHugh Road and Holmen Drive. Carried 6‐1. With Member Rugroden opposed. 

Motion by Stanek, seconded by Anderson to deny the material changes but approve the 
color changes within the Site Plan & Architectural Review (SPAR) petition for amendment to 
approved SPAR of Primus Dental.  Carried 7‐0. 
 

Updates and other informational items from and before the Planning Commission:  
 
None  
 

Adjourn: 
Motion by Rugroden, seconded by Grokowsky to adjourn at 7:30 pm.  Carried 7‐0.  

 
Minutes prepared by Chris Dahl, Village Engineer 
 






























